

1 **OFFICIAL MINUTES**

2  
3 of the **REGULAR MEETING** of the Greenwich Township Board of Education held  
4 **Monday, November 16, 2009** in the Nehaunsey Middle School library.

5  
6 The meeting was called to order by President Frank Minniti at 7:01 p.m.

7  
8 **Roll Call:**

9  
10 Frank J. Minniti  
11 Loraine LaPalomento  
12 Louis Fabiani  
13 Robyn Glocker Hammond  
14 Fred Reel (arrived at 7:03 p.m.)  
15 Susan Vernacchio  
16 James Worrell

17  
18 Also present were Mr. Robert Suessmuth, Interim Superintendent and Scott A.  
19 Campbell, School Business Administrator/Board Secretary.

20  
21 As required under the guidelines of the Open Public Meeting Law, notice of this meeting  
22 was sent to the **Gloucester County Times, Courier Post** and the **Township Clerk**. It  
23 was also posted in the Greenwich Township School Buildings. (Optional: Audio-taping  
24 Regulations – “The proceedings of this meeting are being audio-taped and anyone  
25 wishing to discuss an individual child should so note.”)

26  
27 Flag Salute

28  
29 **1. MINUTES**

30  
31 Motion: (Vernacchio/Minniti) to approve the minutes:

32  
33 October 19, 2009 – Regular Meeting

34  
35 Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote.

36  
37 **2. SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT**

38  
39 Motion: (Glocker Hammond/LaPalomento) to approve the following:

40  
41 A. **Administrative Reports**

- 42  
43 1. Enrollment Statistics, Fire Drills and Suspensions as of **October**  
44 **31, 2009**. (Attachment – EXHIBIT B1)

2. School Health Services Monthly Reports as of **October 31, 2009**. (Attachment – EXHIBIT B2)
3. 2009-2010 Violence & Vandalism Report as of **October 31, 2009**. (Attachment – EXHIBIT B3)
4. Monthly Report of Attendance Office as of **October 31, 2009**. (Attachment – EXHIBIT B4)

Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote.

**3. PERSONNEL**

Motion: (Glocker Hammond/Worrell) to approve the following as one, A-D:

A. The approval to grant an unpaid leave of absence to Christopher McWilliams, Special Education Aide at Broad Street School, to fulfill his student teaching requirement from January 4, 2010 through April 9, 2010. (Attachment – EXHIBIT C)

B. The approval for the appointment of the following individuals as Substitute Teachers for the 2009-2010 school year. Substitute rate will be \$70.00 a day, up to and including ten (10) days. After ten (10) days, the rate increases to \$75.00 a day.

Christopher Bradshaw	Caitlin Fagley
Erica Giannini	Justine Tropea

C. The approval for the appointment of Allison Grelli for the following substitute positions for the 2009-2010 school year.

	<u>Rate of Pay:</u>
Substitute Non-Instructional Aide	\$8.25
Substitute Bus Aide	\$8.25
Substitute Custodian	\$8.50

D. The approval for the appointment of Marcelline Eachus as a Substitute School Nurse beginning February 2, 2010 and for the remainder of the 2009-2010 school year. Substitute rate will be \$100.00 per day.

Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote.

1 **4. CURRICULUM & INSTRUCTION**

2  
3 Motion: (Vernacchio/Glocker Hammond) to approve the following:

4  
5 A. Field Experience Student

- 6  
7 1. The approval of the following student from Rowan University to  
8 conduct her field experience at Broad Street School from January  
9 19, 2010 through May 7, 2010 as listed below:

10  
11 Student Cooperating Teacher

12  
13 Krystle A. Erickson Diane Shirley (Grade 2)

14  
15 Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote.

16  
17 Motion: (LaPalomento/Worrell) to approve the following:

18  
19 B. Field Trips

- 20  
21 1. The approval of Request for Educational Trip/Transportation for the  
22 following:

23

Grade and/or Group	Destination/Time	Date	Estimated Related Cost	Estimated Transportation Cost	Total
Grade 2	Academy of Natural Sciences Philadelphia, PA 9:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m.	4/16/10	Tickets: \$661.50	Drivers: \$300.00 Tolls: \$12.00 Lunch: \$16.00	\$989.50
Grade 1	Adventure Aquarium Camden, NJ 9:00 a.m. – 2:15 p.m.	5/5/10	Tickets: \$781.00 Bus Parking Fee \$20.00	Drivers: \$360.00 Lunch: \$16.00	\$1,177.00

24  
25 **Fred Reel** asked if these class trips were a continuous thing that we have done  
26 previously or are these new class trips? **Robert Suessmuth** responded that the  
27 trips are taken from a list of approved locations so it is probable that these  
28 grades did go to the same places last year but they are good/educational places  
29 and are budgeted for. **Mr. Reel** wanted to know if they are age-appropriate? **Mr.**  
30 **Suessmuth** replied that they are.

31  
32 Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote.

33  
34 Motion: (Glocker Hammond/LaPalomento) to approve the following:

35  
36 C. Workshops

- 1                   1.     The retroactive approval for the following individuals to attend out-  
 2                   of-district workshops:  
 3

Name	Workshop Title/Location/ Date	Cost
Daniel Giorgianni	<b>“Informational Breakfast for Guidance Counselors”</b> Gloucester County Institute of Technology Sewell, NJ November 9, 2009 8:30 a.m. – 11:30 a.m.	\$-0- Plus Mileage
Stephania Tomaszewski	<b>“Changing and Developing a Framework for the New 8.1 Standard”</b> Colts Neck School District Monmouth County, NJ November 13, 2009 10:00 a.m. – 12:30 p.m.	\$75.00 Plus Substitute Plus Mileage

4  
 5                   Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote.

6  
 7                   Motion:           (LaPalomente/Glocker Hammond) to approve the following:  
 8

- 9                   2.     The approval for the following individual to attend out-of-district  
 10                  workshops:  
 11

Name	Workshop Title/Location/Date	Cost
Nicole McGann	<b>“Beyond Basic Differentiated Instruction”</b> Cherry Hill, NJ January 5, 2010 8:30 a.m. – 3:15 p.m.	\$199.00 Plus Mileage Plus Substitute
Nicole McGann	<b>“What’s New in Young Adult Literature”</b> Cherry Hill, NJ January 11, 2010 8:30 a.m. – 3:15 p.m.	\$199.00 Plus Mileage Plus Substitute

12  
 13                  **Fred Reel** wanted to know if a report is written up when the teachers have  
 14                  returned from their workshops so they can share their findings with other staff  
 15                  members? **Robert Suessmuth** replied that they report to the building principal  
 16                  and when it is appropriate to share with other staff, they do. Be aware that some  
 17                  of the workshops are subject specific and may not apply to all staff members.  
 18

19                  Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote.

20  
 21                  **5. BUSINESS AND FINANCE**  
 22

23                  Motion:           (Vernacchio/Worrell) to approve the following:  
 24

- 25                  A.     Bills Lists  
 26

1  
2  
3

- 1. The bills as presented by the Board Secretary in the following amounts are ordered paid. (Attachment – EXHIBIT D)

No#	Amount
P25	\$41,874.37
P26	\$302,400.93
P27	\$118,400.59
P28	\$286,213.22
P29	\$1,209.54
P30	\$10,000.00
P31	\$278,862.02
<b>TOTAL</b>	<b>\$1,038,960.67</b>

4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14

Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote.

Motion: (Vernacchio/Worrell) to approve the following:

**B. Cafeteria Payments**

- 1. The approval for the following cafeteria payments for **November, 2009** as presented by the Board Secretary in the following amounts are ordered paid.

Ck#	Date	Payable To	Description	Amount
836	10/15/09	Greenwich Township Board of Education	VOID	(\$10,000.00)
837	11/15/09	Deer Park Spring Water	Water	\$19.96
838	11/15/09	NJ Department of Agriculture	Food	\$84.60
839	11/15/09	Paul Vallandingham	Food	\$98.80
840	11/15/09	Deluxe Italian Bakery	Food	\$196.93
841	11/15/09	Jack & Jill Ice Cream	Food	\$345.85
842	11/15/09	Electric Motor Repair	Repairs	\$446.18
843	11/15/09	Stroehmann	Food	\$494.13
844	11/15/09	City Supply	Food	\$544.73
845	11/15/09	Hy-Point Farms	Food	\$830.66
846	11/15/09	Sysco Foods	Food	\$7,814.41
			<b>November Total Pay-Out</b>	<b>\$10,876.25</b>

15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20

Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote.

Motion: (LaPalomente/Worrell) to approve the following as one, C-F:

1 C. Student Activities Account

- 2  
3 1. The approval of the Student Activities Account Monthly Bank  
4 Reconciliation for the month of **October, 2009**. (Attachment –  
5 EXHIBIT E)  
6

7 D. Board Secretary's Report

- 8  
9 1. The acceptance of the Board Secretary's Report for the month of  
10 **September, 2009**. (Attachment – EXHIBIT F)  
11  
12 a. Pursuant to *N.J.A.C.6A:23-2.11(c)4*, the Greenwich  
13 Township Board of Education certifies by a roll call vote that  
14 as of **September 30, 2009**, after review of the Board  
15 Secretary's Report for **September 2009**, and upon  
16 consultation with the district officials, to the best of our  
17 knowledge no major account or fund has been over  
18 expended in violation of *N.J.A.C.6A:23-2.11(b)* and that  
19 sufficient funds are available to meet the district's financial  
20 obligation for the remainder of the fiscal year.  
21

22 E. Treasurer's Report

- 23  
24 1. The approval of the Treasurer's Report in accordance with *18A:17-*  
25 *36* and *18A:17-9* for the month of **September 2009**. The  
26 Treasurer's Report and Secretary's Report are in agreement for the  
27 month of **September 2009**. (Attachment – EXHIBIT G)  
28

29 F. Transfer List

- 30  
31 1. The ratifications of transfers, authorized by the Superintendent, for  
32 the month of **September 2009**, to give balances to new accounts  
33 and to balance existing accounts. (Attachment – EXHIBIT H)  
34

35 **Fred Reel** asked if the Board or the Finance Committee is responsible to monitor  
36 the transferring of funds because he wasn't sure what the transfer list was?

37 **Frank Minniti** stated that it is as simple as doing your checkbook, the less  
38 transfers the better but transfers are necessary in doing business. The  
39 Superintendent and Business Administrator do review the list and it isn't  
40 something that the Board checks on unless there is a question on something.

41 **Sue Vernacchio** added that there are another "set of eyes" as the auditors also  
42 look at those lists. **Scott Campbell** also added that most of the transfers are  
43 money that is transferred within programs.  
44

45 Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote.

1 **6. USE OF FACILITIES**

2  
3 Motion: (Worrell/Minniti) to approve the following as one, A-F:

- 4  
5 A. The retroactive approval for Gibbstown Boy's Basketball to use the  
6 Nehaunsey Middle School gymnasium for basketball try-outs from 5:00  
7 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. on the following dates in November: 3, 5, 10, 12, 17 and  
8 19.  
9  
10 B. The approval for Gibbstown Boy's Basketball to use the Broad Street  
11 School and the Nehaunsey Middle School gymnasiums for practice and  
12 games from 4:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. See attached for dates. (Attachment –  
13 EXHIBIT I)  
14  
15 C. The retroactive approval for a CPR Certification Class (Bridge the Gap)  
16 to be held in the Nehaunsey Middle School Library on Thursday,  
17 November 12, 2009 from 3:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.  
18  
19 D. The approval for the Gibbstown PTA to use the Broad Street Library for  
20 pizza pick-up (fundraiser) on Thursday, November 19, 2009 from 1:30  
21 p.m. to 8:00 p.m.  
22  
23 E. The approval for the Gibbstown PTA to use the Nehaunsey Middle School  
24 Gymnasium and Kitchen for Nehaunsey Family Fun Night on Thursday,  
25 February 25, 2010 from 5:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m.  
26  
27 F. The approval for the Gibbstown PTA to use the Nehaunsey Middle School  
28 Gymnasium for Meet the Candidates Night on Thursday, April 15, 2010  
29 from 6:30 p.m. to 9:00 p.m.  
30

31 **Sue Vernacchio** asked if there are enough dates open for the Girl's Basketball  
32 since it looks like the boy's and men's basketball seem to have a good amount  
33 of the time at both schools? **Scott Campbell** responded that he had met with  
34 Glenn Sarmiento of Girl's Basketball and Cheech Rizzo of Boy's Basketball and  
35 they went over the entire calendar and both organizations are happy with the  
36 amount of time they have at the schools. In addition, the men's basketball  
37 moved from Wednesday nights to Tuesday nights to accommodate youth  
38 basketball because CCD was moved to Tuesday nights. So all three of the  
39 groups have worked together and everyone is happy. They were also told to  
40 respect each other's time slot and not to enter the school when the other group is  
41 there. They were each handed a calendar for reference and the calendar is also  
42 posted in both schools. **James Worrell** said there was an issue at the last  
43 recreation meeting because the girls were only getting two nights and the boys  
44 were getting four nights. **Frank Minniti** asked if that was what they asked for?  
45 **Mr. Campbell** stated that they got exactly what they asked for. If they wanted

1 only two nights, then that was all they got. But both organizations looked over  
2 the calendars and again stated that “everybody was happy with it”. **Mr. Minniti**  
3 had a question on item C and wanted to know if the CPR certification class was  
4 open to Greenwich Township residents only? **Cathy Tortella** stated that it was  
5 for the staff for a “Bridge the Gap” workshop. **Mr. Minniti** also wanted to make  
6 sure that there was kitchen staff available for the Family Fun Night being held in  
7 February since the PTA will be utilizing the kitchen. **Mr. Campbell** responded  
8 that it was part of the policy and request.

9  
10 Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote.

11  
12 **7. OLD BUSINESS**

13  
14 **Fred Reel** asked if we were in “good shape” in regards to substitute bus drivers?  
15 **Robert Suessmuth** stated that we were not in good shape at all. We have  
16 advertised, gone to job fairs and have a couple people come in and show an  
17 interest but then when they find out they have to pay for the criminal history  
18 up front, get trained, get a CDL license and go through the whole process, there  
19 have been no follow ups. If we have a situation where a bus driver may be out,  
20 we double up our runs or we have to get an outside contractor to come in and  
21 help us out. **Mr. Reel** wanted to know if “worse came to worse”, would it be  
22 appropriate for the board to pay the costs associated with getting a bus driver  
23 certified? **Mr. Minniti** stated that it is something the board will have to discuss.

24  
25 **Mr. Reel** wanted to know about the health care situation. **Mr. Campbell** stated  
26 that we had an introductory program for the employees who are covered for  
27 health benefits. There were representatives from AmeriHealth and also our  
28 brokers who came out and did two sessions—one at each school—and  
29 answered any questions from the staff. We received all the forms back and are  
30 in the process of switching over from Horizon Blue Cross/Blue Shield to  
31 AmeriHealth. The employees should have their new insurance cards by  
32 Christmas time and everything went smooth. **Mr. Minniti** asked when the  
33 change will take place and **Mr. Campbell** responded that we change over on  
34 January 1, 2010. **Mr. Reel** asked if we were saving “big time money” with this  
35 move? **Mr. Campbell** responded that we weren’t saving big time money but we  
36 were getting a better program. We were required to provide an “equal or better  
37 program” and we have provided a better program.

38  
39 **Mr. Reel** asked about a book, “Boardsmanship”, that is provided by the New  
40 Jersey School Boards Association that at one time, we were going to get. They  
41 were supposed to update it and does anyone know if we have tried to get those  
42 books? **Mr. Campbell** told **Mr. Reel** that the last time we inquired about those  
43 books, we were told to wait until the new addition came out. **Mr. Minniti** stated  
44 that we can contact them to see if the new addition is out.



1 **Mr. Reel** commented that he cuts out a lot of articles from the newspaper about  
2 school districts and he would like to put them in a book so the board can refer to  
3 them when they are at the meetings. **Mr. Minniti** asked if it pertained to our  
4 district? **Mr. Reel** said that it wasn't foreign to our district but it might be  
5 informative to everyone. **Mr. Minniti** stated that we could submit it to the  
6 superintendent so he can review it and then it can go on the agenda and we  
7 have a discussion about it if it is appropriate to our district. **Mr. Reel** stated that  
8 he will cut out what he feels is appropriate and pass it along to the  
9 Superintendent.

10  
11 **Frank Minniti** commented to **Louis Fabiani** that we have not been receiving the  
12 minutes from the Paulsboro Board of Education meeting. He asked Mr. Fabiani if  
13 he could ask them to please forward those minutes along to our board as was  
14 previously done in the past.

15  
16 **Mr. Reel** asked if anyone was knowledgeable on the NJSBA representative for  
17 our district? Her name is Teresa Lewis and do we ever contact her and utilize  
18 her services? **Frank Minniti** mentioned that he had met her at the school board  
19 convention this year.

20  
21 **Mr. Minniti** asked **Mr. Suessmuth** about the 8<sup>th</sup> grade trip. He wanted to know  
22 when the first meeting was because he would like to attend that meeting for  
23 about five minutes. **Mr. Suessmuth** stated that the fundraising planning is under  
24 way but wasn't sure how far they got on it. **Mr. Minniti** stated that there was a  
25 discussion last year about expanding the trip and bringing it back to Washington,  
26 DC but it was too late at that point to talk about it so this year he would like to  
27 attend to discuss alternate places. **Mr. Suessmuth** said he would let him know  
28 when the first meeting is.

29  
30 **8. NEW BUSINESS**

31  
32 **Mr. Reel** stated that he volunteered for the Guardian Angels School Board. He  
33 thinks maybe he could lend some input to what they are doing and if there is  
34 anything that we can do to help them. **Frank Minniti** asked in what ways could  
35 we help them because there are some things we cannot do? **Mr. Reel** stated  
36 that maybe we can give them a heads-up on money that they are eligible for.  
37 **Robert Suessmuth** said there was money that was funded to us but it should  
38 have gone to them so it was reimbursed to them and Sr. Jerilyn, Principal of  
39 Guardian Angels, was able to use it. We do try to include them in certain  
40 things—we have gone to workshops, we have done some Fire Prevention things  
41 with them and we have included them in the H1N1 activities and information and  
42 we try to keep the lines of communication open. Mr. Reel wants to see how many  
43 students they have in their Gibbstown and Paulsboro school up to 8<sup>th</sup> grade that  
44 are from this district. They are helping our district out by taking these students by

1 lessening our number of students. He didn't know if that was a good thing or a  
2 bad thing.  
3

4 **Mr. Reel** asked about the family that had a fire and if we were doing anything to  
5 help them out? **Mr. Suessmuth** responded that clothing would not be of great  
6 benefit because if they get bombarded with clothing, they really have no place to  
7 store it since they are scattered around the area but we have been doing some  
8 fundraising for gift cards so that the mom can purchase what they need. **Mr.**  
9 **Reel** wanted to know if he can donate and **Mr. Suessmuth** told him to see Terri  
10 DiSanto who was seated in the front row and "empty your wallet".  
11

12 **Loraine LaPalomente** had a comment on the "large binders" of policy books and  
13 is there any way we can get them on a CD? **Robert Suessmuth** said he is  
14 pursuing a company that does that to see what we would have to go through  
15 to get that done. He also stated that he is coming to the end of reviewing job  
16 descriptions and he is going to give that to the Board on a CD and he would love  
17 to be able to have the policy books on a CD. **Ms. LaPalomente** said that maybe  
18 even it was on a website that we could access. **Frank Minniti** stated that we  
19 would have to pay a proprietor fee so it is only accessible to a certain amount  
20 since our policies are different from other districts so a CD would be a better  
21 choice and we would need one master set. **Ms. LaPalomente** volunteered to  
22 help out with any "legwork" that was needed to help get the job done.  
23

24 **Sue Vernacchio** asked if we have posted for the Nurse's position yet? **Robert**  
25 **Suessmuth** stated that we have not but we will after we have some discussion in  
26 executive session tonight.  
27

28 **Fred Reel** stated he read an article about the NJEA and how they put all their  
29 money on the election on Corzine but he didn't make it so I don't know how that  
30 is going to influence Governor-Elect Chris Christie. I don't think Christie is going  
31 to take it out on the teachers that put all their money on the other guy.  
32

## 33 9. COORESPONDENCE

34  
35 **Robert Suessmuth** commented on the finalization of the new Greenwich  
36 Gazette that was done "in-house" by staff and students. He said that he is  
37 hoping to get it mailed out by the end of the week so it will be in the households  
38 by early next week. It is in black & white print to save on costs and the savings  
39 are anywhere from \$400.00-\$500.00 so it will cut our costs significantly.  
40

41 **Fred Reel** stated that we should keep a record of all the money we are saving so  
42 when the tax bills come out, we can show that we have been saving money.  
43  
44  
45

1 **10. BOARD OF EDUCATION COMMITTEE REPORTS**

2  
3 **Louis Fabiani** said that Wednesday is the Paulsboro school board meeting.  
4 They have a program where students are assigned to be principal players in the  
5 administration and the school board. He has made arrangements to meet with  
6 the student who is assigned to him and give him a synopsis of how we conduct  
7 the meeting and the students will be conducting the meeting. If anyone is  
8 available or interested, they can stop by Wednesday at the Paulsboro High  
9 School cafeteria.

10  
11 **Mr. Fabiani** also stated that **Robert Suessmuth** handed him some information  
12 from the NJSBA that we should be aware of and some laws that may be coming  
13 up. **Robert Suessmuth** stated that the only one that concerns him right now is  
14 the one where it authorizes the municipalities to pass on to the school district the  
15 hiring and paying of crossing guards. It is not saying that this is necessarily going  
16 to happen but it is out there. Also attached to that is an interview with  
17 Governor-Elect Christie and his views on education.

18  
19 **Frank Minniti** let representatives from the GTEA know that the board will go into  
20 executive session to discuss negotiations. Since everyone wants to know the  
21 start date, if we could have a contact person, we can contact you after executive  
22 session. If someone wants to wait, let the board know where you will be and **Mr.**  
23 **Campbell** will come get you. If you don't want to wait, they can leave a phone  
24 number and we will contact you.

25  
26 **11. PUBLIC - AGENDA/NON-AGENDA ITEMS**

27  
28 This is the time when anyone from the public who wishes to speak to the Board  
29 may do so. Please state your name, address and phone number. The Board will  
30 hear your concerns. The Board may or may not take action this evening. You  
31 will be notified either at this meeting, by letter or telephone of any action the  
32 Board does take.

33  
34 No public comment.

35  
36 **12. EXECUTIVE SESSION**

37  
38 Pursuant to certain requirements of the *Open Public Meetings Act, N.J.S.A. 10:4-*  
39 *6, et seq.*, which provides that an Executive Session, not open to the public, may  
40 be held for certain specified purposes when authorized by Resolution.

41  
42 The Board of Education for Greenwich Township, assembled in public session on  
43 **November 16, 2009** at 7:45 p.m. in the Nehaunsey Middle School library, Room  
44 48, located at 415 Swedesboro Road, Gibbstown, New Jersey, for discussion of

1 certain matters which relate to items authorized by *Open Public Meetings Act*,  
2 (N.J.S.A. 10:4-12b) to be discussed in closed session.

- 3
- 4 Matters Involving Individual Privacy
- 5 Matters Relating to the Employment Relationship
- 6 Matters Relating to the Collective Bargaining Agreement
- 7

8 It is anticipated that such matter may be disclosed to the public upon the  
9 determination of the Board that applicable exception no longer applies and the  
10 public interest will no longer be served by such confidentiality.

11  
12 Motion: (Vernacchio/Worrell) to enter into Executive Session at 7:45 p.m. to  
13 discuss the following:

- 14
- 15 Personnel
- 16 Legal
- 17 Negotiations
- 18

19 Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.

20  
21 Returned from Executive Session at 9:59 p.m.

22  
23 **13. BUSINESS & FINANCE**

24  
25 Motion: (Worrell/Minniti) to approve the following:

- 26
- 27 A. The acceptance of the resolution authorizing submission of the required  
28 Section 15 Grant Agreement documents to the New Jersey Schools  
29 Development Authority.
- 30

31 **WHEREAS**, the Greenwich Township Board of Education by  
32 resolution is authorizing execution and delivery of the Grant Agreement.

33  
34 **WHEREAS**, the following projects will be included in the  
35 Section 15 Grant Agreement:  
36

Project	DOE Project#	SDA Project#	Grant #	Total Project Cost	Grant Amount
Broad St Elementary	1830-050-09-1001	1830-050-09-0ZGN	G5-3440	\$265,000.00	\$106,000.00
Nehaunsey Middle School	1830-060-09-1002	1830-060-09-0ZGO	G5-3441	\$40,000.00	\$16,000.00

37  
38 **NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED**, the Greenwich  
39 Township Board of Education also is recommending the delegation of  
40 authority to the School Business Administrator for supervision of the  
41 school facilities project.

1 Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote.

2  
3 **14. ADJOURNMENT**

4  
5 Motion: (Glocker Hammond/LaPalomento) to adjourn the meeting at 10:02  
6 p.m.

7  
8 Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.

9  
10  
11 Respectfully Submitted,

12  
13  
14 \_\_\_\_\_  
15 Scott A. Campbell, Board Secretary  
16  
17